METRO EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER OF KANAWHA COUNTY

200 Peyton Way

Charleston, WV  25309
Request for Proposals        

ADDENDUM #1
Re:
911 Mass Notification System for the Metro Emergency Operations Center of Kanawha County

Date:
November 24, 2008

Pre-Proposal 
A pre-proposal conference will be held on 
Conference:
Thursday, November 20, 2008, at 11:00 a.m. at the Metro Emergency Operations Center of Kanawha County, 200 Peyton Way, Charleston, WV  25309.  Attendance by telephone must be pre-arranged by contacting Jason Riffle at (304) 746-7911.  A limited number of telephone lines will be available.  
Proposal Due
Proposals must be received on or before 
Date:
Tuesday, December 9, 2008, at 11:00 a.m., at the Metro Emergency Operations Center of Kanawha County, 200 Peyton Way, Charleston, West Virginia 25309

                                                 INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS:


*PLEASE USE THIS FORM AS THE COVER SHEET FOR YOUR PROPOSAL
1.
Proposals must be received in a sealed envelope with the date and time of the proposal due date on the outside of the envelope.  Faxed proposals will not be accepted.
2.
Proposal must be F.O.B. Delivery Point, unless otherwise indicated in the proposal.

3.
All proposals should be signed and in ink, showing all facts and the total amount of the bid.

4.
The Metro Emergency Operations Center of Kanawha County reserves the right to accept or reject in part or in whole any proposal submitted, whichever is in the best interest of the Metro Emergency Operations Center of Kanawha County.

	Item No.
	Description
	Amount

	1
	911 Mass Notification System for the Metro Emergency Operations Center of Kanawha County per the Attached Specifications 
	$


Vendor:  ___________________________    
 Signature:  _________________

Address:  __________________________     
 Date: _____________________

__________________________________      
Telephone:  ________________

Metro Emergency Operations Center 

of Kanawha County

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
ADDENDUM #1
ITEM:
911 Mass Notification System for the Metro Emergency Operations Center of Kanawha County

LOCATION:
The Metro Emergency Operations Center of 


   Kanawha County


200 Peyton Way


Charleston, WV  25309

CONTACT:

Jason Riffle



Metro Emergency Operations Center of 
Kanawha County


(304) 746-7911 or rfp@metro911.org
Pre-Proposal 
A pre-proposal conference will be held on Thursday, November
Conference:
20, 2008, at 11:00 a.m. at the Metro Emergency Operations Center of Kanawha County, 200 Peyton Way, Charleston, WV  25309.  Attendance by telephone must be pre-arranged by contacting Jason Riffle at (304) 746-7911.  A limited number of telephone lines will be available.  
Proposal Due
Proposals must be received on or before 
dATE:
Tuesday, December 9, 2008, at 11:00 a.m., at the Metro Emergency Operations Center of Kanawha County, 200 Peyton Way, Charleston, West Virginia 25309

SPECIFICATIONS:
The following specifications are intended to describe a 911 Mass Notification System for the Metro Emergency Operations Center of Kanawha County and the details contained in these specifications are not designed to exclude any vendor from bidding, but are offered as a means of describing the needs of the Metro Emergency Operations Center of Kanawha County.  Where brand names may be used, the words “or equal” are assumed to follow.  All specifications are minimum requirements.

	Breakdown of Mass Notification System Cost
	

	Initial Installation/Startup Cost
	

	Annual Maintenance Fee

	

	Telephone Notification Calls (bill in ¢/minute increments)

	

	Cost per Pager message
	

	Cost per SMS Message
	

	Cost per EMAIL
	

	API
	

	Public Web Portal
	

	Toll Free Number
	

	Integrated GIS Application

(ESRI Compatible)
	


	Integrated Reporting Application

(Crystal Reports Compatible)
	

	Implementation  On-site Training
	

	Total: 
	

	Options (*note if included)
	

	Public Awareness Campaign

Unlimited Activation
Unlimited Paging

Unlimited SMS

Unlimited EMAIL

Dedicated Calling Capacity

Programming Services (custom features, and system integration, including project scope and total cost based on hourly rates)

Scrubbed Data Services (if available)

Additional Option Details 


	


911 Mass Notification System

Specifications:


A fully Vendor hosted, web accessible solution capable of delivering high speed automated, or pre-recorded notifications by multiple communication mediums including, but not limited to: voice (telephone, cellular phone),  SMS (text messaging), email, pagers, and TDD/TTY devices. GIS mapping integration (ESRI compatible), capable of delivering customized outbound notifications based of geospatial data is required. Vendors should provide details for answers checked “Yes,” and “No.” If an item is checked “No” and the Vendor utilizes an alternate method to achieve the same result, provide details for your solution.  Within the RFP “Bulk list” refers to a county wide mass notification contact list of all residential, and business numbers.
System Design:

a. System should be fully hosted by the Vendor, CPE based systems will not be accepted.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


b. High speed mass notifications which can be initiated by multiple means:

	Internet
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:_________________________



	Telephone (landline)
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:_________________________



	Cellular Phone
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:_________________________



	Smart Phone
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:_________________________



	Wireless PDA
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:_________________________



	Blackberry
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:_________________________



	Other:
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:_________________________




	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. Vendors must provide a detailed list of all notification initiation methodologies as an addendum.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


c. System must be accessible from outside the Metro Emergency Operation Center facilities.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


d. High Availability (notification system should have a minimum uptime of 99.9% per year).

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


e. System design should implement a minimum of three redundant, geographically dispersed locations.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. Capable of real time roll-over of a mass notification campaign in-progress in the event of a system failure.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


f. Dedicated, high quality 24/7/365 customer and technical support

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


g. The vendor should provide a hosted system for multiple inbound toll-free numbers that are allows Metro Emergency Operations Center to post messages and alert updates to the community, alleviating call-taker resources.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. What is the maximum number of simultaneous connections (i.e. capacity) to this toll-free number?
	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


h. Preference: The toll-free system shall provide an interactive capability for touch-tone responses.
	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. Interactive capability can transfer a caller to one of multiple call-taker roles at Metro EOC.
i.e. Press 1 for Emergency Call Taker, Press 2 for Community Support.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


i. Provide detailed information about toll free number configuration options.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


Implementation:

a. System must have the capability to call landline telephones, and support TDD/TTY for the hearing impaired.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. In addition the system should have the capability to notify via additional Contact Methodologies:

	Cellular Phones
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:_____________________



	Pagers
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:_____________________



	Email
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:_____________________



	SMS (Text Messaging)
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:_____________________



	Fax
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:_____________________



	Instant Messenger
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:_____________________



	Wireless PDA
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:_____________________



	Other
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:_____________________




	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


2. Vendors must provide a detailed list of all devices Metro EOC can send and receive notifications with attached as an addendum.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


b. System must be able to contact individuals through the phone system, by dialing numbers from a predefined list.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. Lists generated in real time by selecting a geographical area on a geo-coded map.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


2. Lists should include geographic designations to group/organize bulk list.
	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


c. Preference: Notifications should be customizable in such a way as to be able to prompt recipients for an acknowledgement of receipt of the alert, as necessary.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


d. Notifications which require acknowledgement shall attempt to contact a recipient by all available means one at a time, based on recipient or Metro EOC preferences, until acknowledgement is acquired.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


e. System must allow re-dial of busy, no answer, and operator intercept telephone numbers as necessary.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


f. Preference: System is capable of scheduling future notifications on a set interval, or via calendar dates.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


g. Provide detailed information about contact methodology priorities.
i.e. What contact method is utilizes first, second, third, etc.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. Can Metro EOC configure contact priorities on a group basis?

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


2. Can Metro EOC configure contact priorities on an individual basis?

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


3. Can citizens configure contact priorities for notifications?

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


4. Can Metro EOC override citizen priorities as needed?

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


h. Are emails/SMS messages delivered prior to, or concurrent with, mass call notifications?

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. Are contact method priorities configurable by the Metro EOC on a per notification basis?

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


i. System should be able to customize the Caller-ID read-out for out-going calls to be meaningful for the type of notification being sent, on a per notification campaign basis.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


GIS:

a. Importing shape files from a GIS system (ESRI compatible).

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. Shape files can be uploaded on the fly by Metro EOC.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


b. System should have the ability to add pre-defined scenarios and geographical areas for notification.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


API:

a. Vendor must supply Metro EOC with an API for additional systems integration. 

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


b. Mass Notification system API can respond to triggers, and events from other systems such as GIS, SQL, and Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD).
	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


c. Vendor must provide a detailed description of API input and output cababilities.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


Call Lists: 

a. System’s bulk call lists should be easily updated, using E911, listed, unlisted, commercial, and residential listings.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. Metro EOC input and citizen Opt-in information will not be overwritten during a bulk update by the vendor or Metro EOC.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


b. How many updates are included per year?

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. What is the cost for additional bulk updates?

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


c. All local telco’s must be included in bulk list collections. (i.e. Verizon, Fibernet, etc.)

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


d. If bulk lists are updated by the Metro EOC, what formats and methods are supported for the updates? (i.e. Excel, Access, CSV etc)

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. Provide a list of file formats supported for Metro EOC contact list upload.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


2. What interaction with the vendor is required or provided for updates?
	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


e. How are contact lists managed, and or separated by groups such as bulk list, Metro EOC staff, Citizen Opt-in, outside agencies, and first responders?

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


f. If data scrubbing is used by the Vendor to prescreen modem, fax, and other secondary lines from the bulk lists the Vendor will provide a detailed methodology for how they determine the primary line used by a business or residence.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


OPT-In:

a. The system shall have a web interface hosted by the vendor allowing Opt-in of additional contact methodologies by the community. 

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. Contact Methodologies: (see Implementation a.1)

	Cellular Phones
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:_____________________



	Pagers
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:_____________________



	Email
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:_____________________



	SMS (Text Messaging)
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:_____________________



	Fax
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:_____________________



	Instant Messenger
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:_____________________



	Wireless PDA
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:_____________________



	Other
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:_____________________


2. Citizens are able to update their contact information by means of a secure login username and password.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


3. Opt-in phone numbers include support for TDD/TTY devices.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


4. Citizens are able to Opt-out of their additional non-emergency notification methodologies. 

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


b. Rules-based notifications that take into account, when appropriate, recipient preferences.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


c. Citizens who opt-in can select the types of additional (non-emergency) notifications they receive.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


d. Citizens who opt-in, and do not have a traditional telco home number can tie a cell phone, VOIP phone, or any other contact methodology to a geographic area. (i.e. Citizen can tie a cell phone to a geo-coded address/region for emergency notifications.)

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. How many addresses/regions can a Citizen tie to a cell phone or other methodology?

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


Security and Administration:

a. System shall have secured activation procedures through a series of prompts starting with a username and password. 

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


b. Vendor shall provide detailed information concerning interface permissions, and rights assignment on per user and per group basis.
	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


Group Management:

a. System must be able to create a virtually endless number of notification lists for custom alerts.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


b. Administration of groups can be set on a per group basis.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


c. Group Administrators can set off notifications for groups they have specific privileges for.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


d. Provide details on first responder, ems, fire, and police opt-in to ‘restricted’ groups.

i.e. Can agencies opt-in through some secure method to automatically enroll in their agencies group?

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


e. Separation of contact data between bulk list, opt-in, Metro EOC, and other agencies.
	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


Services:

a. Preference: Does the vendor provide a method to export or backup custom scenarios, contact lists, citizen opt-in data groups, reports, and other Metro EOC/citizen opt-in data.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


b. Vendor must supply on-site training for Metro EOC staff in the activation and implementation of product/service.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


c. Preference: Vendor provides additional content for refresher training available via the internet or email.

	Streaming video
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:__________________________

	Webinars
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:__________________________

	Documentation
	Yes:______
	No:_____
	Details:__________________________


	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


d. Vendor provides Metro EOC with updated documentation as new features are added or become available.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


Billing:

a. Flexible subscription/licensing schedule allowing Metro EOC to choose the solution that best serves its functional and budgetary needs. 

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. Preference for billing methodology that is weighted toward Per-Activation cost (based on number of connected recipients) rather than Per-User cost when utilizing bulk list.
	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


2. Preference for billing methodology that is weighted toward Per-User cost when notifying emergency managers.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


b. Provide detailed information about subscription/licensing schedules including (when applicable):

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. Cost per Activation.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


2. Cost per Minute on connected calls.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


a. What is the increment on per minute billing (i.e. 30 second increments)

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


3. Annual Maintenance Costs.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


a. When Minutes are used how many are included in Annual maintenance?

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


4. Cost per Citizen (when applicable).

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


5. Cost per SMS Message.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


6. Cost per Pager message.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


7. Unlimited Activations per year.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


8. Dedicated capacity.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


9. Shared capacity.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


10. Other billing options available, but not listed above.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


c. What Services are included in an Annual Maintenance agreement?

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


d. The system should be capable of and pricing should include unlimited email notification.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


e. Preference: Pricing should include options for unlimited SMS (text messaging) and paging, as well as on a per call basis.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


Reports:

a. System should provide detailed easily understood, in-process and historical alert reporting.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


b. Provide pre-generated reports for “out of the box” reporting capability.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


c. Customized ad-hoc report design capability.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. Ad-hoc report designs are able to be saved for future use.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


d. Reports and report data can be exported into RMS systems (Crystal Reports Compatible).

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


References:

a. The vendor shall provide a list of new, and longstanding customer references which Metro EOC may contact.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


b. Vendors shall provide benchmarks for mass notification campaigns:

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. Quantity per minute (ideal)?

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


2. Quantity per minute (guaranteed)?

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


Options:

a. The vendor shall provide optional on-site training for Technology Staff on the system. Pricing for this feature should not be included in the proposal, but rather attached as an addendum.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


b. Does the vendor provide public awareness services for the community once implemented to promote citizen opt-in?

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


1. Provide detailed pricing for available public awareness campaigns.

	Does your proposal comply?
	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


c. Related services, optionally available, and clearly priced should be attached as an addendum, and not included in the proposals price.
	Does your proposal comply?


	Yes:_____
	No:_____
	Details:__________________


 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1REQUIREMENTS:
Real Estate and Personal Property Taxes: “No proposal will be accepted or opened on any County contract if the vendor is listed on the last published list of delinquent real or personal property taxes in Kanawha County; however, the Commission will accept bids by vendors who provide satisfactory proof of payment of current taxes or a certification from the Sheriff that no taxes are due prior to submission of said bid.”

Required Forms:     Vendor shall complete and submit, or have on file with the County, a Vendor Registration and Disclosure Statement Form and a “No Debt Affidavit”. 


Once proposals are unsealed, all documents become public record.   The Metro Emergency Operations Center of Kanawha County reserves the right to reject any and/or all proposals and to waive any informality in bidding.
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1

